
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
Commissioners' Meeting 

July 11, 2023 

5:00 P.M. 

 

1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Approval of the Agenda 

3. Commissioner Absence 

4. Communications 

5. Approve minutes of June 27, 2023 Commissioner meeting 

6. Voucher Approval 
 Accounts Payable Vouchers 199631-199676:   $289,385.59 
 GRAND TOTAL VOUCHERS:   $289,385.59 

7. Local 3390 Reports  

8. Chiefs Reports  

9. Standing Committee Reports 

10. Chairman’s Report  

11. 2022 Bond Update  

12. OLD BUSINESS     
a. Health & Safety Expo  D. Doan 

 
13. NEW BUSINESS 

a.  Multi-Year Capital & Staffing Plan  K. Hackmeister 
b.   
 

14. Open Public Comment (state your name for the record, you will have 3 minutes) 

15. GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 

16. SPECIAL INTERESTS/UPCOMING EVENTS  

Adjourn Meeting.  Next regular meeting will be Tuesday, July 25, 2023, at 5:00 PM 



 

 
 
 

COMMISSIONERS’ MEETING MINUTES 
June 27, 2023 

Chairman Urvina called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Present: Commissioners Urvina, Wilsie (virtual), Entze, Sutich and Nelson, F/C D. Doan, A/Cs P. 
Oldenburg, T. Meyer, S. Booth, J. Black, J. Johnson, Finance Director K. Hackmeister and EA T. 
VanderVaate.   

 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
Commissioners Entze and Nelson moved and seconded approval of the agenda. With no further 
discussion, the MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 

 
VOLUNTEER RECOGNITION 
Chief Booth presented Volunteer Medical Responders Chelsea Smith and Scott Hagadorn with 
certificates and thanked them for their years of service to the District.  Chief Meyer presented 
Volunteer Firefighter Steve Nixon with a certificate and thanked him for his years of service to the 
District, noting that Nixon began as a volunteer, became a career firefighter, retired as Assistant 
Chief of Operations and retired, only to come full circle and volunteer as a firefighter for another 
two years.  The District is ending its volunteer program effective June 30, 2023 and everyone 
acknowledged our volunteers for their service and dedication to the District and its citizens. 
 
COMMISSIONER ABSENCE 
 
COMMUNICATIONS  
 
MINUTES AND BLANKET VOUCHERS 
Commissioners Sutich and Nelson moved and seconded approval of the June 13, 2023 meeting 
minutes.  With no further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
Commissioners Nelson and Sutich moved and seconded approval of Accounts Payable 
Vouchers199559-199630, Payroll Vouchers 19543-199558, and ACH transfers as set forth in the 
agenda for a total consideration of $2,851,568.65.  With no further discussion, the MOTION 
CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 

 
LOCAL 3390 REPORTS 
 
CHIEFS REPORTS 
 
Chief Booth reported: 

 The safety improvement plans and grant application for the L&I Fire program have been 
submitted.  We should hear by late August if the grant is awarded. 

 



 
Board of Commissioners 

06‐27‐2023 Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 of 4 

 

 

Chief Black reported: 
 Sunday, June 25, 2023, the District responded to a small brush fire that was upgraded to a 

large fire event.  A second alarm was called, and multiple surrounding agencies assisted.  
All crews did a great job knocking it down quickly and protecting nearby structures, there 
were no injuries, and we have received good feedback. 

 
Chief Meyer reported: 

 The driver/operator process is complete, and a list will be coming out by the end of the 
week. 

 Today is Lieutenant Jaron Spoja’s (Station 56, D-Shift) last shift after over 20 years with 
the District.  There will be a tone-out ceremony at 0800 on June 28, 2023, at Station 56.  
All are welcome to attend to thank Jaron for his service and wish him well in retirement. 

 The Training Division has recently held several regional training classes at 50, and the 
District is hosting a regional DNR meeting tomorrow. 

 Operations will be up staffing July 3-4, 2023. 
 
Chief Doan reported: 

 This is the first year no fireworks are allowed in the City of Gig Harbor.  The Gig Harbor 
police department will be responding to complaints. 

 He and Chief Booth met with CERT team leaders this afternoon and outlined expectations. 
It was a good meeting. 

 He has been participating on two PenMet Parks steering committees. The last meeting for 
a proposed senior center was yesterday, and the last for an aquatic center was today. He 
couldn’t attend today’s meeting because it conflicted with our Board meeting.  This 
completes his obligation to those committees.  

 He will be attending a meeting with Rice Fergus Miller representatives tomorrow to kick 
off the Station 51 design project. 

 He will be doing a ride-along at Station 51 on Thursday. 
 He and the Command Staff team have agreed to move IT from the Logistics Division to 

the Admin Division.  Chief Black will work closely with Chief Oldenburg during the 
transition; work continues to hire an Information Systems Manager. 

 
STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS  
Chairman Urvina reported that a State Auditor interviewed him as a member of the Finance 
Committee.  He also reported that the Fleet and Facilities Committee and Finance Committee 
met with District staff (June 14, 2023) and asked Commissioner Sutich if he wanted to report.  
Commissioner Sutich said he would report later.  Chief Doan advised that District Staff will be 
doing a presentation for the full Board at an upcoming meeting. 
 
FINANCE REPORT 
Krystal Hackmeister advised the Board that the State Auditor will be conducting an entrance 
conference and asked the Board’s preference for that to be handled in an open public meeting or 
by Finance Committee members.  After a brief discussion, it was decided that Committee 
members would participate in the entrance conference. 
 



 
Board of Commissioners 

06‐27‐2023 Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 of 4 

 

 

Krystal Hackmeister presented the May 2023 Financial Report noting everything is as expected 
except in the Capital Fund Budget. Station 53 spending is ahead of schedule due to projects 
moving faster than predicted. 
 
CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
 
2022 BOND UPDATE 
Chief Johnson reported that the Training Campus permitting process and the permitting process 
for Stations 53 and 57 are underway. He expects to complete a water service agreement for 
service to Station 58, the Training Tower, and Training Support Buildings by the end of next 
week.  An announcement to form a Station 51 Design Committee closed last week, and there is a 
kickoff meeting with Rice Fergus Miller tomorrow. 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
A. Resolution 2023-08 Canceling Checks-Warrants. Krystal Hackmeister presented Resolution 2023-08 

to the Board with a request to approve as proposed.  After a brief discussion, Commissioners Nelson 
and Entze moved and seconded approval of Resolution 2023-08.  With no further discussion, the 
MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
SPECIAL INTERESTS/UPCOMING EVENTS 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to discuss, Chairman Urvina adjourned the meeting at 5:28pm.  

The next regular meeting will be 5:00pm on Tuesday, July 11, 2023. 

 

 
Chairman/Commissioner 

 

 
Commissioner 

 

 
Commissioner 

 

 
Commissioner 



 
Board of Commissioners 

06‐27‐2023 Meeting Minutes 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 

 
 

Commissioner 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Attest:  District Secretary 



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE: Dollar Amount TOTAL

Voucher Nos: 199631 through 199632 184,126.40$              184,126.40$                        
199633 through 199653 53,299.40$                53,299.40$                          

237,425.80$              237,425.80$                        
 

237,425.80$                     

VOUCHER APPROVAL: June 27, 2023
APPROVED BY FINANCE DIRECTOR HACKMEISTER

Total Accounts Payable Invoices:

GRAND TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:

PAYABLES RUN FOR COUNTY'S WARRANT PRINTING ON 6/28/23



















ACCOUNTS PAYABLE: Dollar Amount TOTAL

Voucher Nos: 199654 through 199676 51,959.79$                51,959.79$                          

51,959.79$                51,959.79$                          

 

51,959.79$                       

VOUCHER APPROVAL: July 3, 2023

APPROVED BY FINANCE DIRECTOR HACKMEISTER

Total Accounts Payable Invoices:

GRAND TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:

PAYABLES RUN FOR COUNTY'S WARRANT PRINTING ON 7/5/23











Multi-Year 
Capital & Staffing 

Plan Update
July 11,2023



Task & Objective

1. Develop a multi-year capital and staffing plan to include:

 Revenue and Levy renewal forecasting

 Personnel (salaries & benefits, CBA contracts)

 Fleet, Facilities, and equipment

2. Develop strategic options for future spending priorities

3. Present, evaluate and discuss options balancing service delivery and fiscal 
sustainability 

July 11, 2023



Economic Forecast

 High inflation

 High interest rates/borrowing

 Declining real estate values

 Slowing real estate sales

July 11, 2023



Local Forecast

 WA/King/Seattle

 Real estate values declining year over year by 4%

 GEMT Reductions

 Pierce

 2-3% decrease for the whole county

 District

 Flat values across the district

 GEMT Reductions

July 11, 2023



Current Issue

 High Operating Expenses (inflation)

 Reduced Revenue Sources

 Significant Investment for Deferred Capital Needs

July 11, 2023



Base Forecast Key Considerations

 Use of established economic forecasts (National, State, County, and local 
resources)

 Assumes $1.50 General levy renewal

 Assumes growth of other revenue sources

 Assumes conservative rate of expense growth

 Use of Budget 2023 Deep Dive & Right Sizing work in Q3 & Q4 2022

July 11, 2023



Impact of Flat AV Growth in 2024
$34M impact during 6yr Levy

32.2M 32.2M 33.6M 34.1M 34.4M 35.2M 36.1M

3.6M 3.2M
3.3M 3.4M 3.4M 3.4M 3.4M6.1M 4.7M 5.1M 5.4M

7.M
8.6M2.3M

4.7M
6.5M 6.7M

6.7M
7.1M

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

 30,000,000

 35,000,000

 40,000,000

 45,000,000

 50,000,000

 55,000,000

 60,000,000

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Base Taxes Other Revenue Levy Reset Flat AV Impact

July 11, 2023



Impact of Flat AV Growth in 2024
$34M negative impact during 6yr Levy

32.2M 32.2M 33.6M 34.1M 34.4M 35.2M 36.1M

3.6M 3.2M 3.3M 3.4M 3.4M 3.4M 3.4M6.1M 4.7M 5.1M 5.4M 7.M 8.6M

-2.3M -4.7M -6.5M -6.7M -6.7M -7.1M

 (10,000,000)

 -

 10,000,000

 20,000,000

 30,000,000

 40,000,000

 50,000,000

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Base Taxes Other Revenue Levy Reset Flat AV Impact

= ($34M) impact during 6yr Levy

July 11, 2023



Base Six Year Operating Forecast
[No new staff, no new assets, nothing new]

31.8M
33.8M

35.2M
36.6M

38.M
39.6M6.M

6.2M
6.4M

6.6M

6.8M

7.M

 30,000,000

 35,000,000

 40,000,000

 45,000,000

 50,000,000

 30,000,000

 35,000,000

 40,000,000

 45,000,000

 50,000,000

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Personnel M&O Reserves Revenue

July 11, 2023



Pause

July 11, 2023



Capital Plan Results

July 11, 2023



Six Year Estimated Asset Replacement
2024-2029 [31 assets]

8

3

3

6

11

0 2 4 6 8 10 12

Utility

Specialty

Tender

Medic Units

Engines

Count

July 11, 2023



Asset Forecast Count by Year
[31 assets]

1
2 2

1

1

6
5

3

1

2

1

5

1

1
0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Medic Units Engines Tender Specialty Utility

July 11, 2023



Asset Replacement Forecast Value by Year 
$20.2M (2023-2029)

.5M 1.1M 1.1M .6M

.5M

6M 6.1M

1.9M

1.7M

.4M

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

7,000,000

8,000,000

9,000,000

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Medic Units Engines Tender Specialty Utility Trailers

July 11, 2023



Equipment Replacement Forecast by Year
$4.2M (2023-2029)

436K 399K
110K

17K 99K

60K24K

2.1M

44K

57K

126K

126K

94K

145K
101K

-

250,000 

500,000 

750,000 

1,000,000 

1,250,000 

1,500,000 

1,750,000 

2,000,000 

2,250,000 

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Medical Equipment IT & Computer Communications Safety & Health

July 11, 2023



Facilities Forecast by Type
$3.7M

60K

935K

110K100K

880K

1,000K

110K 200K
300K 600K

885K

1,250K

210K 390K

80K
 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

Fire Protection Generator HVAC/Gas Parking Lot Plumbing Roof Ventilation

Planned Bond No

July 11, 2023



Six Year Forecast - $11M Gap

 30,000,000

 35,000,000

 40,000,000

 45,000,000

 50,000,000

 55,000,000

 60,000,000

 30,000,000

 35,000,000

 40,000,000

 45,000,000

 50,000,000

 55,000,000

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Capital

Base

Revenue

July 11, 2023



Break

July 11, 2023



Options Utilized in Forecast Scenarios

 Assumes using the cash in Reserve Funds labeled for capital purchases

 Example, Reserve transfer $830K in Feb 2023 for Medic/Type 3 Engine

 Assumes new CBA terms in 2024/2025, and similar in 2026-2029

 LOCAL Program borrowing for SCBA Purchase

 LOCAL Program borrowing for Medic Units & Tender Purchases

 Zoll Lease program for X Series and AutoPulse units

July 11, 2023



Six Year Forecast (Base + Capital) 
Before Financing/Borrowing

38.2M
40.4M 41.8M

43.4M
45.1M

46.8M

4.4M

9.M
9.4M

.6M

2.8M
.2M

 30,000,000

 35,000,000

 40,000,000

 45,000,000

 50,000,000

 55,000,000

 30,000,000

 35,000,000

 40,000,000

 45,000,000

 50,000,000

 55,000,000

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Base Capital Facilities Revenue

July 11, 2023



Six Year Forecast - Scenario [A]
Utilizing Financing/Borrowing

38.2M
40.4M

41.8M
43.4M

45.1M
46.8M

2.4M
.8M

4.1M

4.1M
3.8M

3.8M

 35,000,000

 40,000,000

 45,000,000

 50,000,000

 55,000,000

 35,000,000

 40,000,000

 45,000,000

 50,000,000

 55,000,000

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Base Capital Facilities Revenue

July 11, 2023



Forecast - Scenario [A]
Utilizing Financing/Borrowing

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 Total

Net Revenue 5.2 1.3 0.9 (0.15) 0.5 1.25 9M

Borrowing (0.5M) (0.5M) (1.8M) (3.4M) (3.4M) (3.5M) (13.1M)

Capital 
Purchases (1.9M) (0.2) (2.3M) (0.6M) (0.3M) (0.25M) (5.5M)

Facilities (0.2M) (0.2M) (0.2M) (0.2M) (0.2M) (0.2M) (1.2M)

Current Gap 2.6M 0.4M (3.4M) (4.35M) (3.4M) (2.7M) (10.9M)

July 11, 2023



Six Year Forecast - Scenario [B]
5 Engines (frontline only and use of capital bond)

38.2M
40.4M

41.8M
43.4M

45.1M
46.8M

2.4M
.8M

3.5M
2.1M

1.9M

1.9M

 35,000,000

 40,000,000

 45,000,000

 50,000,000

 55,000,000

 35,000,000

 40,000,000

 45,000,000

 50,000,000

 55,000,000

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Base Capital Facilities Revenue

July 11, 2023



Scenario [B] 
5 Engines (frontline only, and use of capital bond)

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 Total

Net Revenue 5.2 1.3 0.9 (0.15) 0.5 1.25 9M

Borrowing (0.5M) (0.5M) (1.2M) (1.42M) (1.42M) (1.53M) (6.6M)

Capital 
Purchases (1.9M) (0.2) (2.3M) (0.6M) (0.3M) (0.25M) (5.5M)

Facilities (0.2M) (0.2M) (0.2M) (0.2M) (0.2M) (0.2M) (1.2M)

Current Gap 2.6M 0.4M (2.8M) (2.37M) (1.42M) (0.75M) (4.32M)

July 11, 2023



Six Year Forecast - Scenario [C]
5 Engines (frontline only, plus 1 Type3 in capital bond)
Replace Kodiak with Brush Truck, Reduce 1 Utility vehicle
Defer replacement of Rescue 58, Tenders

38.2M
40.4M

41.8M
43.4M

45.1M
46.8M

.9M

1.5M
1.4M

2.M

2.3M
1.9M

 35,000,000

 40,000,000

 45,000,000

 50,000,000

 55,000,000

 35,000,000

 40,000,000

 45,000,000

 50,000,000

 55,000,000

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Base Capital Facilities Revenue

July 11, 2023



Forecast  - Scenario [C]
5 Engines (frontline only, plus 1 Type3 in capital bond) 
Replace Kodiak with Brush Truck, Reduce 1 Utility vehicle
Defer replacement of Rescue 58, Tenders

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 Total

Net Revenue 5.2 1.3 0.9 (0.15) 0.5 1.25 9.0M

Borrowing (0.6M) (0.9M) (1.1M) (1.8M) (1.8M) (1.5M) (7.6M)

Cashflow 
Purchases (0.3M) (0.6M) (0.2M) (0.2M) (0.4M) (0.4M) (2.0M)

Facilities (0.2M) (0.2M) (0.2M) (0.2M) (0.2M) (0.2M) (1.2M)

Current 
(Gap)* 4.2M* (0.4M) (0.6M) (2.3M) (1.9M) (0.8M) (1.7M)

*Available funds in 2024 needed to balance 2025-2029. 
Projected gap is for the 6 year period.

July 11, 2023



Asset Forecast Count by Year [C]
[21 assets]

1 1
2

1

1

6

1

1

1

5

1
0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Medic Units Engines Tender Specialty Utility

July 11, 2023



Medic/Engines in [Scenario C]
Location

Purchase 
Price

Purchase 
Year

Age at 
Replacement

Replace 
2024 

Replace 
2025

Replace 
2026

A16 Braun NW F450 Shop 188,802 2015 9 X

A17 Braun NW F450 ST51 203,960 2016 9 X

A18 Braun NW F450 ST59 212,053 2017 9 X

A19 Braun NW F450 ST58 260,000 2018 9 X

E23 H&W Spartan ST55 212,053 2004 20 X

E24 Pierce Impel Shop 469,693 2008 17 X

E25 Pierce Impel ST56 469,693 2008 17 X

E26 Pierce Impel Shop 469,693 2008 18 X

E27 Pierce Velocity ST59 556,335 2009 17 X

E28 Pierce Velocity ST51 556,335 2009 17 X

E29 Pierce Velocity ST58 561,185 2010 16 X
Total $860K $6.9M $900K

*Type 3 Engines
July 11, 2023



Specialty/Utility in [Scenario C]
Location

Purchase 
Price

Purchase 
Year

Age at 
Replacement

Replace 
2023

Replace 
2024 

Replace 
2025

Replace 
2026

E31 DNR Chev Kodiak ST54 56,263 2009 16 X

U-TBD F550 ST52 2023 X

U35 Ford F150 UT-50 26,457 2005 19 X

U36 Ford Explorer UT586 26,402 2005 19 X

U37 Ford Explorer UT588 26,402 2005 18 X

U42 Ford Explorer CHF-508 25,073 2007 17 X

U44 Ford F150 UT-51 25,387 2008 16 X

U45 Ford F350 UT-50 22,580 2008 16 X

Total $180K $450K $166M

July 11, 2023



Discussion

July 11, 2023



Engines [Est Full Asset Replacement]
Location

Purchase 
Price

Purchase 
Year

Age at 
Replacement

Replace 
2024 

Replace 
2025

Replace 
2026

E20 Pierce International ST54 170,286 1995 30 X

E21 Pierce International ST53 163,071 1995 30 X

E22 Pierce Quantum ST57 203,960 1999 26 X

E23 H&W Spartan ST55 212,053 2004 20 X

E24 Pierce Impel Shop 469,693 2008 17 X

E25 Pierce Impel ST56 469,693 2008 17 X

E26 Pierce Impel Shop 469,693 2008 18 X

E27 Pierce Velocity ST59 556,335 2009 17 X

E28 Pierce Velocity ST51 556,335 2009 17 X

E29 Pierce Velocity ST58 561,185 2010 16 X

E30 Pierce Impel ST52 515,290 2010 16 X
Total $482K $5.9M $6.1M

*Supplemental Information, this visual does not represent the current replacement plan.
July 11, 2023



Engines [Scenario C]
Location

Purchase 
Price

Purchase 
Year

Age at 
Replacement

Replace 
2024 

Replace 
2025

Replace 
2026

E20 Pierce International ST54 170,286 1995 30

E21 Pierce International ST53 163,071 1995 30

E22 Pierce Quantum ST57 203,960 1999 26

E23 H&W Spartan ST55 212,053 2004 20 X

E24 Pierce Impel Shop 469,693 2008 17 X

E25 Pierce Impel ST56 469,693 2008 17 X

E26 Pierce Impel Shop 469,693 2008 18 X

E27 Pierce Velocity ST59 556,335 2009 17 X

E28 Pierce Velocity ST51 556,335 2009 17 X

E29 Pierce Velocity ST58 561,185 2010 16 X

E30 Pierce Impel ST52 515,290 2010 16
Total $482K $6.4M

*Type 3 Engines
July 11, 2023



Facility Needs by Location

0 200,000 400,000 600,000 800,000 1,000,000 1,200,000 1,400,000

SHOP

ST50

ST51

ST52

ST53

ST54

ST55

ST56

ST57

ST58

ST59

Planned Bond No

*Supplemental Information, this visual does not represent the current replacement plan.
July 11, 2023


	2023-07-11 AGENDA.pdf
	Commissioner Mtg Minutes 06-27-2023.pdf
	Voucher Totals - 06.27.23
	Voucher Approvals #1 - 06.27.23
	Voucher Approvals #2 - 06.27.23
	Voucher Totals - 07.03.23
	Voucher Approvals 07.03.23



